
 

 
TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
 

Minutes 
 

January 23, 2006 
 

Meeting called to order by Chairman, James Van Hooker, at 7:02 p.m. with the reading 
of the legal notice. 

 

ROLL CALL 
Present:  James Van Hooker, Steve Boshart, Robert Kochka, William Remia, 
Harry Rescigno, Samantha Vaughan, Alice Dusenberry, Kristen Koerner 

 
 Absent:   
 
 Present:  William Drew, Planning Director 
       Robert Sparkes, GIS Specialist 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS   

Samantha Vaughan motioned to move to nominate the same slate as 2005 to the 
next term of 2006.  William Remia seconded motion.  All in favor. 
 
ADOPTION OF MEETING SCHEDULES   

William Remia made motion to adopt meeting schedule and seconded by 
Samantha Vaughan.  
 

MINUTES 
Adoption of minutes of November 15, 2005 motion made by Robert Kochka and 

seconded by Samantha Vaughan.  Adoption of December 20, 2005 motion made by 
Samantha Vaughan and seconded by Alice Dusenberry.  All if favor. 
  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE GRANTS 
 
Technical Assistance CLG Grant Interview of potential Consultant:   

Discussion in the procedure of interviewing the Consultant for the grant using the 
evaluation sheets that Samantha Vaughan produced.  Rob Sparkes stated there was no 
response for the CLG Grant Task 1. Steve Boshart asked if the consultants were aware 
of Task 1.   Rob Sparkes explained that the packet that was sent out was a request for 
a proposal for Task 1, one page and one page for Task 2 and it was referred to the 
Xerox copies of the contract agreement with the Historic Preservation Office, which 
included both Task 1 and Task 2.  If they read the whole thing, they would have gotten 
both of them but were only asked to submit proposal for Task 2.   
 
INTERVIEWS: 

Introduction of the Historic Preservation Commission to Ms.T. Robin Brown.  She 
is a Historic Preservation Consultant currently masters in architectural history and has 
more than 20 years of experience.  For many years she has worked for the State 
Historic Preservation Offices in New York State and in the District of Columbia.  She 
worked twelve years for Bergen County coordinating the Bergen County Historic Site 
Survey and complied a report for each of the municipalities.  She's worked as the 
Bergen County Historic Preservation officer for six years.  At the present she is the 
Historic Preservation Consultant and works regularly two days a week for Bergen 
County and does other consulting work including environmental reviews.  She is 
prominently working in Bergen County, but with the engineering firm works in Morris 
County and Hudson County.  She's worked throughout the state.  She is currently 
finishing up the designs and guidelines for the Ridgewood Historic Commission for their 
downtown district and is beginning to design the guidelines for Closter.  Samantha 
Vaughan asked her what specifically goes into the guidelines.  She stated Design 
Guidelines are both a benefit for the Commission and the public to understand what the 
people read in the law, what are the design factors what that they have to go by to 
obtain their Certificate of Appropriateness.  She would write design guidelines for 
windows, construction, landscaping to reflect the values of the Historic Preservation 
Commission.  It would include pictures and drawings.  Discussion of the designation for 
the historic district.  William Drew explained that there have been meetings with the 
public and the Commission does not feel successful.  The main focus is to educate the 
Commission, the public, Town Council and Planning Board as well as the Library. Ms. 

id13676421 pdfMachine by Broadgun Software  - a great PDF writer!  - a great PDF creator! - http://www.pdfmachine.com  http://www.broadgun.com 



Historic Preservation Commission 
Minutes 
January 23, 2006 
Page 2 
 
 
Brown explained it is important to educate the public by sparking the interest in the 
history of the district or structure.  Steve Boshart spoke of the survey sheets.  She felt 
as though a presentation having a brochure using pictures and telling the stories of the 
area would be the first thing to introduce the public to spark interest. Discussion of the 
Master Plan.  Ms. Brown suggested that the Commission work closely with the Planning 
Board and Zoning Board.  Discussion of the website and the lack of it.  Ms. Brown 
suggested that the Commission does not put the survey sheets on the website.  She 
suggested a good picture with a significant blurb would be more interesting than a 
formal survey sheet.  Ms. Brown stated that the key is to regulate change and not 
preventing change.  The tax credit programs are encumbersome. She feels as though 
the grant program is more beneficial.  Discussion on resources.  Ms. Brown stated that 
the State Historic Trust have a database of resources and also check with the 
Construction Official.  Samantha Vaughan inquired if Ms. Brown would be interested in 
Task 1.  She doesn't think she would have time due to her commitments.  She also said 
it has become very difficult to complete a national register application and at this point of 
her life she does not have the interest in doing so.  Alice Dusenberry asked her about 
the Highlands Act.  She wasn't informed on the impact of the Highlands Act.  William 
Drew explained that the Highlands Act helps historic preservation.  Ms. Brown feels as 
though she is very well experienced working with municipalities and the state.  
 

Introduction of the Historic Preservation Commission to Wayne McCabe.  William 
Drew explained the goals of the grant.  Wayne McCabe stated that the inventory should 
be finished.  The Commission was not properly prepared for the public hearing in 
November of 2004.  Mr. McCabe stated that the HPC should start a campaign in the 
newspapers and a one on one with the property owners of how you go about promoting 
historic preservation and what it means to those people.  Each member of Commission 
member needs to be educated.  Starting with background information on the buildings 
and the community.  He suggested putting an article in the paper on a weekly/monthly 
basis highlighting a structure with information.  Brochures of interest that can be handed 
out highlighting the history of the Township.  Discussion of a Christmas tour with the 
homeowners using a guide that explains the history of the home. Wayne McCabe 
explained how he went to the merchants personally and was successful.   Samantha 
Vaughan asked about tax credits for renovations or grant programs.  There are 
business facade improvement programs where they get grants from  Dept. of 
Community Affairs, paint programs for homes from the Dept. of Community Affairs. Alot 
of the towns have developed Main Street programs, Urban Enterprise Zones that does 
capital work.  Identify what are the important needs in the community.  There are 
different avenues to proceed.  Wayne McCabe stated that the HPC should be giving an 
annual report to the governing body.  It builds the relationship with the governing bodies 
of them knowing what the HPC is accomplishing. Alice Dusenberry asked about the 
Highlands Act. He has mixed feelings but overall it is good for historic preservation. First 
the HPC needs to gather all the important data then have internal training with the 
Commission.  He suggested having a mock public hearing. Key contributing building is 
a structure that can on it's own accord and merit be eligible for inclusion on the State 
and National Register for Historic Places.  A non-contributing building as example  
McDonald would be one.  A contributing building is something in between that is not 
non-contributing and not a key contributing but is taken as its own entity it doesn't make 
the criteria for the National Register but taken as part of the historic district and the 
fabric of that district it contributes to that.  Wayne McCabe and his assistant would be 
assisting the HPC in gathering the information.  Once gathered it would be applied to a 
simpler format for the public. Samantha Vaughan asked if he would be interested in 
Task 1.  He said he would be happy to. 
 

Robert Sparkes explained that an evaluation was done on the Tichenor House.  
The representative from the State felt as though the exterior of the Tichenor House is 
not eligible for designation.  The exterior has been altered so much that it would not be 
eligible and that there has to be something extra extraordinary inside (fireplace-Robert 
Kochka) the house to make it eligible.  He questioned the worth of it since the County 
has not indicated any support of the nomination or the stabilization of it.  He felt as 
though we might be throwing the money away and the County is not going to do 
anything with it.  Steve Boshart concurs with that at an architectural perspective.  Steve 



Historic Preservation Commission 
Minutes 
January 23, 2006 
Page 3 
 
 
Boshart stated as far as the complex and the background with the views and the 
property and everything with it at Wallisch's really is a comprehensive piece and the 
condition is fifty times better.  Rob Sparkes said that Wayne McCabe suggested if the 
County wants to demolish it that they should have to do the drawings get a really good 
documentation on the house, but it would be so expensive to stabilize and restore that 
house he does just not see it.  William Drew doesn't think the County will do anything.  It 
will just sit until it further deteriorates.  Rob Sparkes said we need to approach the HPO 
for a game plan for the possibility of transferring the money to another structure.    
James Van Hooker stated the Wallisch Estate was built by a Tichenor.  Rob stated the 
estate is in its original form.  Rob explained to the representative that the Commission 
was trying to get movement on the preservation on the house.  The representative 
appreciated that but at the same time the representative doesn't think that would 
happen.  Steve Boshart questioned if there are any issues being that the Wallisch is a 
town owned property.  Rob explained that it is a 40% match.  With a $3,000.00 dollar of 
the grant the HPC would have to approach the Council for $2,000.00.  Alice Dusenberry 
questioned the Open Space Recreation Farmland and Historic Trust Fund that hasn't 
been spent there is $600,000.00 in the fund.  William Drew explained that the money is 
not available reason being the question on the ballot did not pass.  Samantha Vaughan 
expressed that it would be a good idea to approach the State and discuss an alternate 
site and put that money in our budget.  William Drew will send up a request to the 
Administrator to amend the budget.  William Remia questioned the status of the 
Tichenor House.  Steven Boshart explained when the house was evaluated got the 
feeling that the representative did not feel it was eligible.  William Remia is concerned 
that Passaic County will let the structure go.  William Drew stated that he feels as 
though the County wanted the HPC do get the designation in order to follow through 
with their obligations.  William Drew stated the HPC could still put pressure on the 
County for property maintenance.  James Van Hooker questioned the money be used 
for the Tichenor House or Wallisch Estate.  Steve Boshart suggested that Wayne 
McCabe evaluate the Tichenor House, Vreeland House and the Wallisch Estate.  
Samantha Vaughan suggested since Task 1 was not awarded, the HPC edit Task 1, if 
the State approves, requesting a full-blown form for Wallisch and assist the HPC do the 
abbreviated form for the Tichenor House.  Rob Sparkes suggested an inspection be 
done on the inside of the Tichenor House.  Robert Kochka and James Van Hooker 
explained of the big fireplace where you could walk into it and there was a big arm to 
place a big pot that swung into the fireplace.  Steve Boshart moved to investigate the 
options with Task 1 expanding towards the Wallsich Estate property either in 
conjunction with or place of depending on which the State will push us if we are able to 
do a partial on the Tichenor House.  Steve is curious if Wayne will give us a number 
back how far number one his dollars are going of the original task was, he feels as 
though Wayne will work with the HPC.  How far should the HPC proceed with the 
Tichenor House.  James Van Hooker asked about the Board of Education's 
involvement. William Drew stated the School Board would have to be approached.   
Steve Boshart moved in reference to Task 1 that we as the HPC just open up the 
possibilities that the Wallisch Estate be part of the assumed grant as well as the 
potential condition of the designation by the State be for Tichenor House based on a 
limited application.  James Van Hooker seconded.  All in favor.  Samantha Vaughan 
moved if the State's response is favorable the HPC will approach the Council for 
$2,000. addition in our funds and also reach out to the School Board.  William Remia 
seconded motion.  All in favor. 
 

Discussion on the Consultants ensued. Results of the evaluation sheets are T. 
Robin Brown 573 points and Wayne McCabe 684 points.  William Drew advised the 
Commission if the HPC awards the contract to Wayne McCabe to be certain that he is 
the front-end presenter.  Wayne McCabe has to be the principal presenter.  Motion 
made by Harry Rescigno hire Wayne McCabe as Consultant for Task 2 motion 
seconded by Samantha Vaughan.  All in favor.  Harry Rescigno motioned to send the 
information on Task 1 with the provision that we may amend it in the near future. 
Seconded by Samantha Vaughan.  All in favor.  
 
 
  



Historic Preservation Commission 
Minutes 
January 23, 2006 
Page 4 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion to adjourn meeting by Harry Rescigno and seconded by Samantha 
Vaughan.  Meeting adjourned at 10:03. 
    
  
 
  
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       Gail Van Hook,  

Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Word\VH\Historic\Minutes-01-23-06 


